
MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The City of Sweet Home will work to build an economically strong community with an efficient and effective local 
government that will provide infrastructure and essential services to the citizens we serve. As efficient stewards of 
the valuable assets available, we will be responsive to the community while planning and preparing for the future. 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, 
advanced notice is requested by notifying the City Manager’s Office at 541-367-8969. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
         

CITY OF SWEET HOME  
CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 
August 8, 2017, 6:30 p.m. 
City Hall Annex, 1140 12th Avenue 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 

 
 PLEASE silence all cell phones – Anyone who wishes to speak, please sign in. 
 
A. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
B. Roll Call:   

Councilor Coleman   Mayor Mahler  
   Councilor Gerson   Councilor Trask  
   Councilor Goble   Councilor Underwood 
   Councilor Gourley 

  
C. Consent Agenda: 

a) Approval of Minutes: 
i. July 25, 2017 City Council Minutes (pg. 3-8) 
 

D. Recognition of Visitors and Hearing of Petitions 
 
E. Old Business: 

a) City Manager Self Evaluation Distribution 
 
F. New Business:  

a) Request for Council Action – Municipal Lease and Option Agreement (pg. 9-37) 
 
G. Introduction, First and Second Reading of Ordinance Bills 

a) INTRODUCTION  
 

b) FIRST READING 
 

c) SECOND READING 
 
 

 
H. Third Reading of Ordinance Bills (Roll Call Vote Required) 

 

WIFI Passcode: 
guestwifi 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.1



MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The City of Sweet Home will work to build an economically strong community with an efficient and effective local 
government that will provide infrastructure and essential services to the citizens we serve. As efficient stewards of 
the valuable assets available, we will be responsive to the community while planning and preparing for the future. 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The location of the meeting is accessible to the disabled. If you have a disability that requires accommodation, 
advanced notice is requested by notifying the City Manager’s Office at 541-367-8969. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

i. Ordinance No. 8 for 2017 – Ordinance No. 1262 -  An Ordinance Granting 
A Non-Exclusive Gas Utility Franchise to Northwest Natural Gas Company, 
Fixing Terms, Conditions and Compensation of such Franchise; and 
Repealing Sweet Home Ordinance No. 1145 (pg. 38-47) 

 
I. Resolutions 

 
J. Reports of Committees:  
Administrative & Finance/Property  Goble 
Parks Board (Minutes 07-18-17 pg. 48-49) Trask 
Public Safety/Traffic Safety (Minutes 07-25-17 pg. 50) Coleman 
Public Works Mahler 
Tree Commission (Minutes 07-19-17 pg. 51) Trask 
Youth Advisory Council Gourley 
Chamber of Commerce Coleman 
Fire District Trask 
Council of Governments Gerson 
Area Commission on Transportation Coleman 
Solid Waste Advisory Council Goble 
Ad Hoc Committee on Health Gourley 
 
K. Reports of City Officials: 

a) Mayor’s Report 
b) City Manager’s Report 
c) Department Director’s Reports: 

i. Finance Director 
(1) July 2017 Finance Department Report (pg. 52) 
(2) Check Reconciliation (pg. 53-55) 

ii. Library Services Director 
iii. Community and Economic Development Director 
iv. Police Chief 
v. Public Works Director 
vi. City Attorney’s Report  

 
L. Adjournment  

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.2



City of Sweet Home City Council  

Meeting Minutes – July 25, 2017 

 

 

 SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
July 25, 2017 

 
Mayor Mahler called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Annex.  The Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, City Attorney Robert Snyder, Police Chief Jeff Lynn, 
Finance Director Pat Gray, Library Services Director Rose Peda, Public Works Director Greg 
Springman and Recording Secretary Julie Fisher 
 
Visitors Registered to Speak: Josh Metcalf, Scott Gagner, Carl Sundberg, Jaime Schwarze, Steve 
Haney 
 
Media: None 
            
Roll Call: Councilor Coleman  P  Mayor Mahler   P  
  Councilor Gerson  P  Councilor Trask    P 
  Councilor Goble  P  Councilor Underwood  AB  
  Councilor Gourley  P   
 
  It was noted by the Councilor Underwood was unexcused 
 
Consent Agenda: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recognition of Visitors & 
Hearing of Petitions 
 
Carl Sundberg 
28041 Fern Ridge Rd 
Sweet Home, OR 97386 
 
 
Tim Goodman 
Director of Government Affairs 
Comcast 
 
Summer Reading Program 
Check Presentation 
 
 
 

 
Motion was made to approve the Consent Agenda. 
(Goble/Coleman) Motion carried 6 Ayes, 0 Opposed, 1 
Absent (Underwood) 
 
Items on the consent agenda are as follows: 
      Approval of Minutes:  
       July 6, 2017 City Council Special Meeting Minutes 
       July 11, 2017 City Council Meeting 
        
          
 
Mr. Sundberg introduced himself and stated he would like 
to see Comcast have an office in Sweet Home.  He was 
also unhappy that there was not a local direct number to 
contact them. 
 
Tim Goodman addressed some of the concerns stated by 
Mr. Sundberg, noting that 5 new call centers have been 
opened in the western United States.  Mr. Goodman stated 
offices have been strategically placed, one in Lebanon and 
one in Corvallis.  Mr. Goodman talked about programs to 
help low income families receive internet and a computer.  
Mr. Goodman presented a check for $500 to LSD Peda for 
the Summer Reading Program. 
 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.3



City of Sweet Home City Council  

Meeting Minutes – July 25, 2017 

 

 

Old Business: 
Affirming Councilor Goble’s 
Excused Absence at July 6, 2017 
City Council Work Session 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
New Business:  
 
Request for Council Action – 
Community Grants Applications 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request for Council Action – 
CH2M Operations, Maintenance 
 & Management Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor Gourley stated for the record Councilor Goble was 
excused from the work session on July 6, 2017. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilor Gerson 
Council Goble 
Councilor Coleman 
Councilor Gourley 
Mayor Mahler 
Councilor Trask 
Councilor Underwood 
 
 
City Manager Towry reviewed the RCA for the Community 
Grants Program.   
Susan Coleman recused herself stating her husband is 
Pastor for Hillside Fellowship who has applied for a 
Community Grant, which could result in a financial gain for 
Councilor Coleman. 
 
Motion to approve $2500 from the 2017-2018 
Community Grants Program to be allocated as follows: 
$1,090 to the Sweet Home Pregnancy Care Center, $320 
to the Singing Christmas Tree, $1,090 to Manna. 
(Gourley/Gerson) 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Council Goble 
Councilor Coleman 
Councilor Gourley 
Mayor Mahler 
Councilor Trask 
Councilor Underwood 
Councilor Gerson 
 
The Motion passed with 5 Ayes, 0 opposed, 1 Recused 
and 1 absent. 
 
The RCA was presented for the CH2M Operations 
Maintenance and Management Service Agreement. 
The Council discussed the vehicle the City provides to 
CH2M.   
Mayor Mahler stated a work session is needed to review 
and discuss further agreement with CH2M – OMI. 
 
Motion to authorize City Council to approve and 
execute contract Amendment No. 2 with Operations 
Management International, Inc. (CH2M –OMI) for the 

Aye 
Abstain 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Absent 
 

Aye 
Recused 
Aye 
Aye 
Aye 
Absent 
Aye 
 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.4



City of Sweet Home City Council  

Meeting Minutes – July 25, 2017 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request for Council Action – 
Library Resource 
Intergovernmental Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request for Council Action – 
Application for a License for a 
Taxicab Service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Introduction, First and Second 
Reading of Ordinance Bills: 
 
Introduction: 
 
 
First Reading: 
 
 
Second Reading: 
 
Ordinance No. 8 for 2017- 
Ordinance No. ____ - An 
Ordinance Granting a Non-

City of Sweet Home, Oregon, for the operation, 
maintenance and management services for the City’s 
municipal water and municipal wastewater treatment 
facilities. (Gourley/Gerson) 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilor Gourley 
Mayor Mahler 
Councilor Trask 
Councilor Underwood 
Councilor Gerson 
Councilor Goble 
Councilor Coleman 
 
The motion passed with 4 Ayes, 2 opposed and 1 
Absent (Underwood). 
 
LSD Peda introduced the Request for Council Action 
regarding the Intergovernmental Agreement Resource 
Sharing explaining the change in the IGA is the agreement 
will remain in effect until terminated. 
 
Motion to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Trask/Gerson).  The motion passed with 6 Ayes, 0 
Opposed and 1 Absent (Underwood). 
 
City Attorney Snyder presented the request for a license for 
a taxicab in the City of Sweet Home. 
 
Motion to approve a taxicab license for James Hicks 
dba Priority One Taxi commencing upon payment to 
the City of the appropriate fees as set forth in SHMC 
5.28.020. (Gourley/Coleman).  The motion passed with 6 
Ayes, 0 Opposed and 1 Absent (Underwood). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City Manager Towry read by title only Ordinance Bill No. 8 
for 2017.  The Ordinance was moved to third and final 
reading on August 8, 2017. 

Aye 
Aye 
Nay 
Absent 
Aye 
Nay 
Aye 
 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.5



City of Sweet Home City Council  

Meeting Minutes – July 25, 2017 

 

 

Exclusive Gas Franchise to 
Northwest Natural Gas 
Company, Fixing Terms, 
Conditions and Compensations 
of such Franchise; and 
Repealing Sweet Home 
Ordinance No. 1145 
 
Third and Final Reading of 
Ordinance Bills: 
 
Ordinance No. 7 for 2017 – 
Ordinance No. 1261 - An 
Ordinance Relating to Rate 
Increases for Solid Waste 
Management in the City of Sweet 
Home, Oregon and Repealing 
Sweet Home Ordinance 1241. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolutions: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Josh Metcalf and Scott Gagner representing Sweet Home 
Sanitation presented the Council with information on the 
CPI for the last 25 years and explained the regular 
increases with CPI allows for rate stability and living wages 
for employees.   
 
There was discussion among the Council regarding a cap. 
 
Motion to adopt Ordinance Bill No. 7 for 2017, 
Ordinance No. 1261 as written. (Trask/Gerson) 
 
City Attorney Snyder ready by title only Ordinance No. 7 for 
2017 – An Ordinance Relating to Rate Increases for Solid 
Waste Management in the City of Sweet Home, Oregon 
and Repealing Sweet Home Ordinance 1241. 
 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Councilor Goble 
Councilor Coleman 
Councilor Gourley 
Mayor Mahler 
Councilor Trask 
Councilor Underwood 
Councilor Gerson 
 
Motion Passed with 4 Ayes, 2 Opposed and 1 Absent. 
 
None 
 

Council Reports 
 

 

Committee Reports: 
 

Administration & Finance/ 
Property Committee 

 
Public/Traffic Safety 

 
 
None 
 
 
Councilor Coleman stated the Public Nuisance Ordinance 

Aye 
Nay 
Nay 
Aye 
Aye 
Absent 
Aye 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.6



City of Sweet Home City Council  

Meeting Minutes – July 25, 2017 

 

 

 
 
 

Public Works 

was reviewed and an amendment will be coming before 
Council. 
 
Mayor Mahler stated a Work Session is needed to review the 
CH2M Contract. 
 

City Boards/Committees: 
 
           Chamber of Commerce 
           Bill Matthews 
           Chamber of Commerce 
           Board Chairman  
 
           Fire District 
 
 

Park Board 
 
 
 

Tree Commission 
 

Y.A.C.  
 
 
          Ad Hoc Committee  
          Community Healthcare 
 

 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
Councilor Trask reported the new tools were used during a 
bad crash this weekend and worked very well. 
 
Councilor Trask announced he is meeting with Ellen 
Shepard with Oregon Trust on the 9th to discuss a grant for 
lighting in the parks. 
 
Councilor Trask stated the last meeting was cancelled. 
 
Councilor Gourley announced the YAC met today and their 
next meeting will be on the 15th at 1pm. 
 
Councilor Gourley gave an update on the Health Fair 
planning. 

   Regional Boards/Committees: 
 
Area Commission on 
Transportation (ACT) 

 
COG 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Solid Waste Advisory 
Council (SWAC) 

 
 
Councilor Coleman announced the ACT meeting is next 
week. 
 
Councilor Gerson submitted a written report.  She 
announced a Special Regional Project Fund is accepting 
applications for regional projects.  The grant is up to 
$15,000.  Councilor Gerson suggested establishing a bike 
path from Cheadle Lake to Foster Lake. 
Councilor Gerson announced an intern at the COG will be 
contacting the City regarding solid waste disposal. 
 
None 

 
Mayor’s Report  
 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 

 
Mayor Mahler announced a Work Session August 8th to 
review the Chamber of Commerce Agreement. 
 
City Manager Ray Towry reported that 2 candidates were 
interviewed for the Community and Economic Development 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.7



City of Sweet Home City Council  

Meeting Minutes – July 25, 2017 

 

 

 Director position.  Jerry Sorte has accepted the position. 
City Manager Towry stated the Council laptops are in and 
there will be a practice and training session soon. 
The City will be switching web hosting companies and the 
new website will be more user friendly. 
 

Department Directors Reports: 
 
Finance Director 

 
 
 
 
 

Library Director 
 
 

 
Community and Economic 
Development Director 

 
Police Chief 

 
 
 
 

Public Works 
 
 
 
           City Attorney  
 
Adjournment: 

 
 
Finance Director Pat Gray announced on July 15th the 
Albany Fitwalkers hosted an event in Sweet Home with 95 
participants.  
FD Gray announced the kiosks are being built that are part 
of the Healthy Eating Active Living (HEAL) Grant. 
 
Library Services Director Peda announced the next Summer 
Reading Event which will be Creature Teacher at the Sweet 
Home Boys and Girls Club. 
 
None 
 
 
Chief Lynn submitted a report on statistics for the first 6 
months of 2017.  The Police Department received the final 
report from the Agency Review and will present it to Council 
soon. 
 
Public Works Director Greg Springman reported he met with 
Brown & Caldwell who will help him create an RFP for Phase 
1 on the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 
 
None 
 
With no further business the meeting adjourned at 8:15 PM. 
 

The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council at the July 25, 2017 regular 
City Council Meeting. 
               
                        Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
              
City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.8



1 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

PREFERRED AGENDA: 
Aug. 8, 2017 
SUBMITTED BY: 
Chief Jeff Lynn 
REVIEWED:   
City Manager, R. Towry 
Admin/Fin/Prop Committee 

TITLE:   
Patrol Vehicle Lease 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Lease Agreement 

TYPE OF ACTION: 
     RESOLUTION 
 _   MOTION 
  X   OTHER 

 

PURPOSE OF THIS MEMO:   
For Council to review the proposed Municipal Lease Agreement with Auto Leasing Specialists, 
LLC, to acquire a new patrol vehicle – 2017 Ford Interceptor SUV.  The lease term is for three 
years and at the end of the 3rd year, the vehicle is then purchased for $1. Council authorized a 
move to the leasing option in January of 2010.  
 
BACKGROUND/CONTEXT:   
The Sweet Home Police Department maintains a patrol vehicle fleet that includes seven (7) 
marked patrol cars (4 – Patrol; 2 – SSgt’s; 1 – SRO). SHPD last replaced a patrol vehicle in 
2013 at which time we acquired three. At the end of 2012, two patrol vehicles were rammed and 
destroyed in a pursuit. Because of this, in 2013 we were forced to replace three vehicles which 
forced us to change from the yearly replacement methodology. Council authorized a move to 
the leasing option in January of 2010.  
 
THE CHALLENGE/PROBLEM:    
How to maintain a modern, reliable patrol fleet that will meet the needs of our department and 
citizens? 
 
The Sweet Home Police Department maintains a patrol vehicle fleet that includes seven (7) 
marked patrol cars.  SHPD last replaced a patrol vehicle in 2013 at which time circumstances 
surrounding a pursuit required we acquire three vehicles. Historically, SHPD had been able to 
replace a patrol vehicle on a yearly basis, at or around 120,000 miles. Each PATROL below 
typically puts between 18,000 and 23,000 miles on them per year. However, at the end of 2012, 
two patrol vehicles were rammed and destroyed in a pursuit. Because of this, in 2013 we were 
forced to replace three vehicles which required we deviate from the yearly replacement 
methodology.  

Earlier this year, a SHPD patrol vehicle was damaged and determined to be totaled during a 
pursuit (2013 Interceptor). That vehicle is scheduled to be replaced with funds from CIS (our 
insurance carrier).  
 
Below is a list of the patrol vehicles that includes the year and mileage associated with them.  
 
ID  YR/Model Mileage User 

50 2006 Impala 123000 SRO 

55 2010 CVP 105184 SGT 

56 2010 CVP 82715 SGT 

58 2012 Charger 99212 PATROL 

59 2013 Charger 85294 PATROL 

60 2913 Charger 111080 PATROL 

61 2013 Interceptor 98997 PATROL 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.9



2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
The vehicle currently assigned to the SRO has the highest mileage and will be replaced. The 
department will then shuffle vehicles so that the Patrol Officers and Sergeants will have the 
lower mileage vehicles. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS: 

1. Sweet Home Police Department. It is vital officers have reliable fleet vehicles to 
effectively serve citizens. 

2. Citizens. Citizens rely on SHPD to help them in many cases, usually when a vehicle 
failure could be the difference between life or death. 

3. Other Emergency Agencies. SHPD often “backs up” other Emergency Services 
Personnel such as SHFD. 

 
ISSUES & FINACIAL IMPACTS: 

1. The 2017-2018 budget approved $26,000 for vehicle leases, which was intended to be 
used for the replacement of two patrol vehicles during this fiscal year.  

2. The recently received independent audit from the Oregon Association Chiefs of Police 
strongly suggested updating the fleet. 

 
ELEMENTS OF A STABLE SOLUTION: 
Ideally this lease would allow us to update our fleet to be safer, more dependable and ideally 
lower maintenance costs. 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Do Nothing.  
2. Do not authorize SHPD to enter into the lease agreement. 
3. Authorize SHPD to enter into the Lease Agreement with Auto Leasing Specialists, LLC., 

to acquire the patrol vehicle. 
4. Have staff investigate another funding mechanism for the replacement of a patrol 

vehicle.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends option #3: Authorize SHPD to enter into the Lease Agreement with Auto 
Leasing Specialists, LLC., to acquire the patrol vehicle. 

 
 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.10



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.11



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.12



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.13



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.14



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.15



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.16



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.17



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.18



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.19



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.20



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.21



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.22



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.23



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.24



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.25



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.26



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.27



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.28



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.29



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.30



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.31



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.32



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.33



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.34



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.35



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.36



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.37



ORDINANCE NO. 8 FOR 2017 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE GAS UTILITY FRANCHISE TO 

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY, FIXING TERMS, CONDITIONS AND 

COMPENSATION OF SUCH FRANCHISE; AND REPEALING SWEET HOME 

ORDINANCE NO.1145. 

 

The City of Sweet Home does ordain as follows: 

 

Section 1:     Definitions and Explanations. 

 

(1) As used in this ordinance. 

 

(a) “Bridge” includes a structure erected within the City to facilitate the crossing of a 

river, stream, ditch, ravine or other place, but does not include a culvert. 

 

(b) “City” means the City of Sweet Home and the area within its boundaries, 

including its boundaries as extended in the future. 

 

(c) “Council” means the legislative body of the City. 

 

(d) “Day” means calendar day, not working (Monday – Friday) Day. 

 

(e) “Grantee” means the corporation referred to in Section 2 of this ordinance. 

 

(f) “Gas Mains” includes all gas transmission and distribution facilities and services 

located on or under any Street, Bridge or Public Place within the City. 

 

(g) “Gross Revenue” means revenues received from the use of the gas utility system 

within the City limits less related net uncollectibles.  Gross Revenue shall include 

revenues from the use, rental or lease of the gas utility system, except when those 

revenues have been paid to Grantee by another franchisee of the City and the paid 

revenues are used in the calculation of the franchise fee for the operations of the 

other franchisee within the City limits.  Gross Revenue shall not include proceeds 

from the sale of bonds, mortgage, or other evidence of indebtedness, securities or 

stocks, or sales at wholesale by Grantee to any public utility or public agency 

when the public utility or public agency is not the ultimate customer.  Gross 

Revenues also shall not include public purpose charges, provided that such 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.38

cmadmin
Typewritten Text
1262



charges or surcharges are required or authorized by federal or state statute, 

administrative rule, or by tariff approved by the OPUC and raised revenue is used 

solely for a public purpose and not to compensate Grantee for the sale or use of 

natural gas or for the use, rental, or lease of Grantee’s utility system within the 

City.  Gross Revenue also shall not include revenues derived from the sale or 

transportation of gas supplied under an interruptible tariff schedule or revenues 

paid directly by the United States of America or any of its agencies.  

 

(h) “Person” includes an individual, corporation, association, firm, partnership and 

joint stock company. 

 

(i) “Public Place” includes any city-owned park, place or grounds within the City 

that is open to the public but does not include a Street or Bridge. 

 

(j) “Street” includes a street, alley, avenue, road, boulevard, thoroughfare or public 

highway within the City, but does not include a Bridge. 

 

(2) As used in this ordinance, the singular number may include the plural and the plural 

number may include the singular. 

 

(3) Unless otherwise specified in this ordinance, any action authorized or required to be 

taken by the City may be taken by the Council or by an official or agent designated by the 

Council. 

 

Section 2:     Rights Granted. 

 

Subject to the conditions and reservations contained in this ordinance, the City hereby grants to 

NORTHWEST NATURAL GAS COMPANY, a corporation, the right, privilege and franchise 

to: 

 

(1) Construct, maintain and operate a gas utility system within the City. 

 

(2) Install, maintain and operate on and under the Streets and Bridges and Public Places of 

the City, facilities for the transmission and distribution of gas to the City and its 

inhabitants and to other customers and territory beyond the limits of the City; and 

 

(3) Transmit, distribute and sell gas. 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.39



Section 3:     Use of Bridges and Public Places by Grantee. 

 

(1) Before the Grantee may use or occupy any Bridge or Public Place, the Grantee shall first 

obtain a permit from the City to do so and shall comply with any special conditions the 

City requires on such use or occupation. 

 

(2) The compensation paid by the Grantee for this franchise includes compensation for the 

use of Bridges and Public Places located within the City as authorized.   

 

Section 4:     Duration. 

 

This franchise is granted for a period of ten (10) years from and after the effective date of this 

ordinance. 

 

Section 5:     Franchise Not Exclusive. 

 

This franchise is not exclusive, and shall not be construed as a limitation on the City in: 

 

(1) Granting rights, privileges and authority to other persons similar to or different from 

those granted by this ordinance. 

 

(2) Constructing, installing, maintaining or operating any City-owned public utility. 

 

Section 6:     Public Works and Improvements Not Affected by Franchise. 

 

The City reserves the right to: 

 

(1) Construct, install, maintain and operate any public improvement, work or facility. 

 

(2) Do any work that the City may find desirable on, over or under any Street, Bridge or 

Public Place. 

 

(3) Vacate, alter or close any Street, Bridge or Public Place. 

 

(4) Whenever the City shall excavate or perform any work in any of the present and future 

Streets, alleys and Public Places of the City, or shall contract, or issue permits, for such 

excavation or work where such excavation or work may disturb Grantee’s Gas Mains, 

pipes and appurtenances, the City shall, in writing, notify Grantee sufficiently in advance 

of such contemplated excavation or work to enable Grantee to take such measures as may 

be deemed necessary to protect such Gas Mains, pipes and appurtenances from damage 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.40



and possible inconvenience or injury to the public.  In any such case, the Grantee, upon 

request, shall furnish maps, drawings or field utility locate markings to the City or 

contractor, as the case may be, showing the approximate location of all its structures in 

the area involved in such proposed excavation or other work. 

 

(5) Whenever the City shall vacate any Street or Public Place for the convenience or benefit 

of any Person or governmental agency and instrumentality other than the City, Grantee’s 

rights shall be preserved as to any of it facilities then existing in such Street or Public 

Place. 

 

Section 7:     Continuous Service. 

 

The Grantee shall maintain and operate an adequate system for the distribution of gas in the City.  

The Grantee shall use due diligence to maintain continuous and uninterrupted 24-hour a day 

service which shall at all times conform at least to the standards common in the business and to 

the standards adopted by state authorities and to standards of the City which are not in conflict 

with those adopted by the state authorities.  Under no circumstances shall the Grantee be liable 

for an interruption or failure of service caused by act of God, unavoidable accident or other 

circumstances beyond the control of the Grantee through no fault of its own. 

 

Section 8:     Safety Standards and Work Specifications. 

 

(1) The facilities of the Grantee shall at all times be maintained in a safe, substantial and 

workmanlike manner. 

 

(2) For the purpose of carrying out the provisions of this section, the City may provide such 

specifications relating thereto as may be necessary or convenient for public safety or the 

orderly development of the City.  The City may amend and add to such specification 

from time to time. 

 

Section 9:     Control of Construction. 

 

The Grantee shall file with the City maps showing the location of any existing, new construction, 

extension or relocation of its Gas Mains in the Streets of the City and shall obtain from the City 

approval of the location and plans prior to commencement of the work.  The City shall require 

the Grantee to obtain a permit before commencing the construction, extension or relocation of 

any of its Gas Mains and service lines.  Permit applications must be filed ten (10) working days 

in advance of the commencement of the work. 

 

 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.41



Section 10:     Street Excavation and Restorations. 

 

(1) Subject to provisions of this ordinance, the Grantee may make necessary excavations for 

the purpose of constructing, installing, maintaining and operating its facilities.  Except in 

emergencies, prior to making an excavation in the traveled portion of any Street, Bridge, 

or Public Place, and when required by the City, in any untraveled portion of any Street, 

Bridge, or Public Place, the Grantee shall obtain from the City approval of the proposed 

excavation and of its location.  Grantee shall give notice to the City by telephone, 

electronic data transmittal or other appropriate means at least 24 hours prior to the 

commencement of service or maintenance work and as soon as is practicable after the 

commencement of work performed under emergency conditions. 

 

(2) Except as provided in subsection (3) of this section, when any excavation is made by the 

Grantee, the Grantee shall promptly restore the affected portion of the Street, Bridge or 

Public Place to the same condition in which it was prior to the excavation within ten (10) 

working days or specific permit requirements.  The restoration shall be in compliance 

with specifications, requirements and regulations of the City in effect at the time of such 

restoration.  If the Grantee fails to restore promptly the affected portion of a Street, 

Bridge or Public Place to the same condition in which it was prior to the excavation, the 

City may make the restoration, and the cost thereof shall be paid by the Grantee. 

 

(3) At its option and upon written notice to Grantee, provided Grantee has not already started 

restoration efforts as provided in subsection (2) of this section, the City may restore or 

resurface the affected portion of any Street, Bridge or Public Place excavated by the 

Grantee to the same condition in which it was prior to the excavation, and the cost thereof 

shall be paid by the Grantee. 

 

Section 11:     Location and Relocation of Facilities. 

 

(1) All facilities of the Grantee shall be placed so that they do not interfere unreasonably 

with the use by the City and the public of the Streets, Bridges and Public Places and in 

accordance with any specification adopted by the City governing the location of facilities. 

 

(2) The City may require, in the public interest, the removal or relocation of facilities 

maintained by the Grantee in the Streets of the City, and the Grantee shall remove and 

relocate such facilities within a reasonable time after receiving notice to do so from the 

City.  The cost of such removal or relocation of its facilities shall be paid by the Grantee, 

but when such removal or relocation is required for the convenience or benefit of any 

Person, governmental agency or instrumentality other that the City, Grantee shall be 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.42



entitled to reimbursement for the reasonable cost thereof from such Person, agency or 

instrumentality. 

 

Section 12:     Compensation. 

 

(1) As compensation for the franchise granted by this ordinance, the Grantee shall pay to the 

City an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the Gross Revenue collected by the Grantee 

from its customers for gas consumed within the City.  The Grantee may offset against 

such compensation the amount of any license, permit or other fees paid to the City in 

connection with the Grantee’s use of the Streets, Bridges and Public Places of the City. 

Grantee may also offset against such compensation the amount of any privilege tax 

particularly imposed upon energy utilities.   

 

(2) During the first year of the franchise agreement, the City may, upon thirty (30) days’ 

prior written notice, initiate the renegotiation of the level of compensation.  During the 

nine (9) remaining years of the franchise agreement, the compensation may be subject to 

annual renegotiation at or before the anniversary date of the term of the franchise hereby 

granted, and provided the Grantee is notified, in writing, at least thirty (30) days prior to 

the anniversary date. 

 

(3) The compensation required by this section shall be due for each quarter ending March 31, 

June 30, September 30 and December 31, or fraction thereof, within thirty (30) days after 

the close of each quarter, or fraction thereof.  Within thirty (30) days after the termination 

of this franchise, compensation shall be paid for the period elapsing since the close of the 

last calendar year for which compensation has been paid. 

 

(4) The Grantee shall furnish to the City with each annual compensation adjustment required 

by this section a written statement showing the amount of Gross Revenue of the Grantee 

within the City for the period covered by the payment computed on the basis set out in 

subsection (1) of this section.  The compensation for the period covered by the statement 

shall be computed on the basis of the Gross Revenue so reported.  If the Grantee fails to 

pay the entire amount of compensation due the City through error or otherwise, the 

difference due the City shall be paid by the Grantee within thirty (30) days from 

discovery of the error or determination of the correct amount.  Any overpayment to the 

City through error or otherwise, shall be offset against the next payment due from the 

Grantee. 

 

(5) Acceptance by the City of any payment due under this section shall not be deemed to be a 

waiver by the City of any breach of this franchise occurring prior thereto, nor shall the 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.43



acceptance by the City of any such payments preclude the City from later establishing 

that a larger amount was actually due, or from collecting any balance due to the City. 

 

Section 13:     Books of Account and Reports. 

 

The Grantee shall keep accurate books of account at an office in Oregon for the purpose of 

determining the amounts due to the City under Section 12 of this ordinance.  The City may 

inspect the books of account at any time during business hours and may audit the books from 

time to time.  The Council may require periodic reports from the Grantee relating to its 

operations and revenues within the City.  All amounts of the Franchise Fee shall be subject to 

audit or review by the City, provided that only payments that occurred or should have occurred 

during a period of thirty-six (36) months prior to the date that the City notifies Grantee of its 

intent to perform an audit shall be subject to such audit.   The Grantee will not provide the City 

with records containing customer information that identifies or can be attributed to a specific 

customer, without a written legal opinion by or on behalf of the City to the Grantee’s reasonable 

satisfaction that such records will not be subject to public disclosure under state law, and that any 

requests for such records will be opposed by the City.  

 

Section 14:     Supplying Maps Upon Request 

 

The Grantee shall maintain on file, at an office in Oregon, maps and operational data pertaining 

to its operations in the City.  The City may inspect the maps and data at any time during business 

hours.  Upon request of the City, the Grantee shall furnish to the City, without charge and on a 

current basis, maps showing the location of the Gas Mains of the Grantee in the City.  Said maps 

shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the request from the City.  Maps shall be in 

electronic (CD) format, readable by AutoCAD© or ArcView© software. 

 

These records are submitted in confidence, and the City will keep those records in confidence 

and not allow others to view or copy them.  The City agrees to keep the documents confidential, 

subject to the provisions of state law and the Oregon Public Records law, and to take the position 

that they are exempt from public disclosure.  The City shall limit access to the as-built drawings 

provided by Grantee to City employees or City contractors with a need to know where the 

Grantee's facilities are located and shall review the as-built drawings only as necessary to plan 

City projects, coordinate the use of the rights of way, and to protect the public health and safety. 
 

Section 15:     Indemnification. 

 

Grantee by accepting the franchise agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless the City and 

its officers, agents and employees from and against all claims, actions, causes of action, 

demands, judgements, costs, expenses and all damages of every kind and nature, incurred by or 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.44



on behalf of any person or corporation whatsoever, predicated upon injury to or death of any 

person or the loss of or damage to property of whatever ownership, including the parties to this 

franchise, and their employees, and in any manner arising out of or connected with, directly or 

indirectly, to any wrongful or negligent act or omission of the Grantee, its agents or employees in 

the exercise of the rights or privileges herein granted.  

 

Section 16:     Insurance. 

 

Upon request by the City, Grantee shall at all times during the existence of this franchise, furnish 

proof of public liability insurance or self-insurance, with minimum coverage of not less than that 

required by ORS 30.270 (tort claim limits). 

 

Section 17:     Permit and Inspection Fees. 

 

Nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to limit the right of the City to require the Grantee to 

pay reasonable costs incurred by the City in connection with the issuing of a permit, making of 

an inspection, or performing any other service for or in connection with the Grantee or its 

facilities, whether pursuant to this ordinance or any other ordinance or resolution now in effect or 

hereafter adopted by the City. 

 

Section 18:     Assignment of Franchise. 

 

This franchise shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors, legal 

representatives and assigns of the Grantee. 

 

Section 19:     Termination of Franchise for Cause and Expiration of Franchise. 

 

Upon the willful failure of the Grantee, after thirty (30) days’ notice and demand in writing, to 

perform promptly and completely each and every term, condition or obligation imposed upon it 

under or pursuant to this ordinance, the City may terminate this franchise, subject to Grantee’s 

right to a court review of the reasonableness of such action.  At the end of the franchise term, if 

the City and Grantee are negotiating another franchise and have not concluded their negotiations, 

Grantee’s rights and responsibilities shall be controlled by this Franchise until the City grants a 

new franchise and Grantee accepts it. 

 

Section 20:     Remedies Not Exclusive, When Requirement Waived. 

 

All remedies and penalties under this ordinance, including termination of the franchise, are 

cumulative, and the recovery or enforcement of one is not a bar to the recovery or enforcement 

of any other such remedy or penalty.  The remedies and penalties contained in this ordinance, 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.45



including termination of the franchise, are not exclusive and the City reserves the right to enforce 

the penal provisions of any ordinance or resolution and to avail itself of any and all remedies 

available at law or in equity.  Failure to enforce shall not be construed as a waiver or a breach of 

any term, condition or obligation imposed upon the Grantee by or pursuant to this ordinance.  A 

specific waiver of a particular breach of any term, condition or obligation imposed upon the 

Grantee by or pursuant to this ordinance shall not be a waiver of any other or subsequent or 

future breach of the same or of any other term, condition or obligation, or a waiver of the term, 

condition or obligation itself. 

 

Section 21:     Acceptance. 

 

The Grantee shall, within thirty (30) days from the date the Council passes and the Mayor 

approves this ordinance, file with the City its written unconditional acceptance of this franchise, 

and if the Grantee fails to do so, this ordinance shall be void. 

 

Section 22:     Repeal of Ordinance. 

 

Sweet Home Ordinance No. 1145 is hereby repealed. 

 

PASSED by the Council and approved by the Mayor this _____ day of __________, 2017. 

 

 

______________________________ 

                                                                                                        Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

City Manager – Ex Officio City Recorder 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.46

cmadmin
Typewritten Text

cmadmin
Typewritten Text

cmadmin
Typewritten Text

cmadmin
Typewritten Text

cmadmin
Typewritten Text

cmadmin
Typewritten Text
8th

cmadmin
Typewritten Text
August



 

ACCEPTANCE 

 

 

City of Sweet Home 

City Recorder 

1140 12 Ave. 

Sweet Home, OR  97386 

 

 

This is to advise the City of Sweet Home, Oregon (the “City”) that Northwest Natural Gas 

Company (the “Grantee”) hereby accepts the terms and provisions of Ordinance No. _____ 

passed by the Sweet Home City Council on ____________, 2017 (the “Franchise”) granting a 

Franchise for ten (10) years to Grantee.  The Grantee agrees to abide by each and every term of 

the Franchise, and shall become effective upon acceptance of said agreement by NW Natural 

Gas Company (the “Grantee”). 

 

 

 

(Name) 

BY __________________________ 

                                                       

 

        

TITLE  Senior Vice President  Regulation & General Counsel   

 

DATE   __________________________ 

                                                       

 

 

This Acceptance was received by the City of Sweet Home on __________, 2017. 

 

 

                                                      

__________________________ 

City Recorder 
 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.47

cmadmin
Typewritten Text
1262

cmadmin
Typewritten Text
August 8



                      
 
                 

Sweet Home Parks Board Meeting Minutes –July 18, 2017  1 
 

 

 

Park Board Minutes 

July 18, 2017 
 
Call to Order at 8:30am 
  
Attendance:  Chairperson Angela Clegg, Nancy Patton, Mariann Biteman, Councilor Dave Trask 
 
Visitors:  
 
Staff: Public Works Director Greg Springman, Planning Assistant Katie Wilcox  
   
Absent:   
 
Approval of the June 19th Minutes 
 
Welcoming and Introductions / Ideas and Proposals 
 

Discussion ensued about Sankey Park Upgrades and Beautification.  
Questions Included:  Is the Dahlenburg Bridge proposed to be moved, or another bridge?  Is 
there a sprinkler system at Sankey Park?   
Ideas included: Fixing the existing sprinklers, reinstalling the playground equipment that has 
been removed once the new playground are is created, enhancing the green areas with seeding 
and maintenance.  Postpone painting the Dahlenburg Bridge until after it is moved and installed 
at the New City Hall site and reallocating those funds to the Sankey Park improvements.  
 
Discussion ensued about the 2017-2018 Capital Outlay.  Katie Wilcox explained the Capital 
Outlay and the Detail of 2017-2018 Capital Improvement Plan (CIS) Purchases.  She explains how 
the funds are broken down and itemized for projected improvements based on their 
recommendations.  She explained where the priority projects were in the plan and that they 
have had funds allocated and are approved to move forward.  She explained the difference 
between the Parks Department Fund and the Parks and Recreation Fund and why one needs to 
go to Council for approval while the other is already approved, as long as it correlates with the 
CIP.  Dave explained that he had set up a meeting with the Energy Trust of Oregon to discuss 
funding opportunities.  The group discussed the importance of considering the future 
maintenance needed from proposed improvements and the staffing needs for that 
maintenance.  The group discussed looking into spending the donated funds on the trail 
enhancement and a bridge to span Ames Creek from Sankey to the Community Center.  
Questions Included: General questions around how to read the Capital Outlay and the Detail of 
2017-2018 Capital Improvement Plan (CIS) Purchases.   
Ideas included:  The reallocation of funds for painting the Dahlenburg Bridge to the Sankey Park 
irrigation system.  Greg suggested he review Capital Outlay and the Detail of 2017-2018 Capital 

City of Sweet Home 

Parks Board 
City Hall 

Conference Room 

1140 12th Ave., 

Sweet Home, OR 97386 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.48



                      
 
                 

Sweet Home Parks Board Meeting Minutes –July 18, 2017  2 
 

Improvement Plan (CIS) Purchases and come back to the Park Board to review the priorities of 
the board and move forward.  Greg, Joe and Katie are to hold a meeting to plan lighting project.  
Greg suggested moving forward on beautification as well as making improvements one piece at 
a time.  Look into modular pre-fabricated bridges that can be installed on site to span Ames 
Creek.  Work with the South Santiam Watershed council to move forward on the bank erosion 
and placement of the bridge in the Riparian Area.     
Concerns Included: Safety issues, and moving forward on Capital Improvement projects.  That 
the decided priorities for the bathroom and lighting upgrades at Sankey were not addressed in 
the CIS.   

 
Discussion ensued about the hand rail and steps at Northside Park.   
Questions Included: Can railroad ties be used as steps.  Why is there a “porta potty” at the park 
if there are working bathrooms?  
Ideas Included: Create footings with compacted soil for steps.  Move forward on building railing.   
Concerns included: Safety Issues and ADA accessibility.  Redo bathrooms to become single use 
and to accommodate ADA access.   

 
Discussion ensued about the duties of the Park Board.  Katie recapped on the completion of the 
capital development program for the next fiscal year.  She continued explaining that they 
outline the recreation programs to be carried on by the city’s Recreation Department for the 
next fiscal year and have recommended an operating budget to carry out the recreation 
program as outlined.  She asked the board if they wanted to consider passive recreation 
programs for next year that could increase the use of the parks.  They group briefly reviewed the 
recommendations and goals of the Master Plan.   
Questions Included: Are we following our Master Plan and moving forward towards the goals. 
Ideas Included: Review the Parks Master Plan.  
Concerns included:  Is the Park Board and the proposed CIS following the Master Plan 

 

 
 

Next Regular Parks Board Meeting – August 21, 2017 @ 8:30AM 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.49



City of Sweet Home Public Safety Committee 

Meeting Minutes – July 25, 2017 

 

 

  
SWEET HOME CITY COUNCIL 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
 

July 25, 2017 
 
Councilor Coleman called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Annex.   
 
Staff Present: City Manager Ray Towry, Public Works Director Greg Springman, City Attorney 
Robert Snyder, Police Chief Jeff Lynn and Recording Secretary Julie Fisher 
 
Registered Visitors: Justin Cherrington, Vince Adams and Linda Iljin 
 
Media: None 
 

Committee Present: Councilor Coleman, Mayor Mahler, and Councilor Goble (5:35pm) 
              
The purpose of the Public Safety Committee meeting was to review the Chronic Nuisance 
Property Ordinance. 
 
City Attorney Snyder reviewed portions of SHMC Chapter 8.12 and proposed amendments to 
clarify terms and intent of the compliance agreement. 
 
Justin Cherrington introduced himself and stated he is a landlord in Sweet Home.  Mr. Cherrington 
stated the Chronic Nuisance Ordinance has helped him clean up his property and the crime rate 
has gone down in his neighborhood.  Mr. Cherrington stated he desires a stricter ordinance and a 
heavy hand on landlords renting to drug dealers. 
 
Mayor Mahler agreed and added he would like to see Code Enforcement efforts strengthened. 
 
The Consensus of the Committee was to move the item to the full Council for review in August.  
City Attorney Snyder stated he will draft the ordinance amendment. 
 
With no further business the meeting adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 
 
The foregoing is a true copy of the proceedings of the City Council Public Safety Committee 
Meeting on July 25, 2017. 
 
 
 
       

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.50



    

 

 
Sweet Home Tree Commission Meeting Minutes 

July 19, 2017 
Page 1 of 1 

 

 Sweet Home Tree Commission Minutes 

 Wednesday, July 19, 2017     

Phone: 541-367-8113                                                     

Sweet Home City Hall 

Conference Room                                                    

1140 12th Ave.,  

Sweet Home, OR 97386 

www.ci.sweet-home.or.us                                                                        

 

9:00AM   Note:  No official meeting held due to lack of quorum.  

 

Next Regular Tree Commission Meeting- August 16, 2017 at 9:00 AM 

 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.51

http://www.ci.sweet-home.or.us/


 
 
 
 Assisted Koopman Consulting with the transfer of the Fire Districts Financial reports and payroll 

 Completed Fire District’s 2016-2017 audit worksheets 

 Assisted Albany Fit-walkers on their 5k/10k walk in Sweet Home on July 15. 95 people participated 

 Presented insurance information to Union/Management Insurance Committee during meeting 

 Sent budget and required state forms to Linn County to ensure property taxes are assessed for 
Sweet Home for 2017-2018 

 Completed Request for Coverage with City County Insurance Services to ensure med/dent/vision 
insurance coverage for employees on January 1, 2018 

 Completed the annual ODOT Local Road Street Survey for the State to report how state gas tax 
funds were utilized during the 2016-2017 fiscal year 

 Attended a training on the new city website 

 Worked on 2016-2017 audit worksheets and reconciliation of city funds with expenditures/revenues 

 Worked on preparations for the August 19 eclipse run/walk and health/safety fair 

 Assisted City of Lebanon with budget and year-end close out while Finance Director off on leave 

 Accounts Payable:  133 checks were processed for payments of $653,588.06 (list is included) 

 Passport Services:  25 passports were processed and 38 sets of photos were taken in July 

 Lien Searches: 52 lien searches were requested in July 

 Aug 
16 

Sept 
16 

Oct 
16 

Nov 
16 

Dec 
16 

Jan 
17 

Feb 
17 

Mar 
17 

April 
17 

May 
17 

June 
17 

July 
17 

12 mos  
avg 

Passport 
Applications 

18 19 30 18 26 39 52 53 45 38 37 25 33 

Lien Searches 28 85 45 40 35 40 25 35 24 45 41 52 41 

 

 Utility Billings:   
3316 Billing statements mailed in July 
1239 Past Due Notices were mailed in July  
0 Phones calls made to customers by staff prior to turn off 
85 Accounts were turned off for non-payment on July 9 
Total of 314 Service Requests were processed, 65 new account opened, 55 account closed, 0 accounts 
were put in or taken out of vacation status, 78 accounts were checked for leaks, 9 accounts had the 
meter re-read, 27 accounts had water turned back on, 28 meters were changed out, 7 new meters were 
installed, 8 emergency offs were ordered, 18 accounts had temporary water service and 19 
miscellaneous requests were completed by Public Works 

 

 

Aug  
16 

Sept  
16 

Oct  
16 

Nov 
16 

Dec  
16 

Jan  
17 

Feb  
17 

Mar  
17 

April 
17 

May  
17 

June  
17 

July 
17 

Billing 
Statements 3298 3310 3300 3301 3293 3293 3298 3293 

 
3302 3292 3301 3316 

Past Due 
Notices 1157 1265 1447 1158 1236 1343 1383 1220 

 
1205 1263 1098 1239 

Phone 
Calls Made 129 83 142 142 101 120 156 146 

 
0 128 109 0 

Turn Offs 28 21 33 46 21 36 46 33 
 

78 29 28 85 

 

City of Sweet Home 

Finance Department Monthly Report 
 

July 2017 

 

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.52



User:

Printed: 08/02/2017 -  8:14AM

pgray

Bank Reconciliation

Cleared and Not Cleared Checks

Checks by Date

Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

7/5/2017 85597 SAIF CORPORATION AP  48,226.00

7/11/2017 85625 CHUCK CHEESMAN AP  250.00

7/11/2017 85626 RED YARN PRODUCTIONS AP  325.00

7/11/2017 85627 WEST WOODS, LLC, DBA MAD SCIENCE AP  419.95

7/17/2017 85628 ACCELA, INC. #774375 AP  1,400.00

7/17/2017 85629 ALSCO AP  291.00

7/17/2017 85630 ALTERNATIVE POWER SYSTEMS, LLC AP  350.00

7/17/2017 85631 ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES AP  707.62

7/17/2017 85632 BI-MART CORPORATION AP  64.12

7/17/2017 85633 BUCK'S SANITARY SERVICE, INC. AP  348.00

7/17/2017 85634 CENTURYLINK AP  1,318.25

7/17/2017 85635 CH2M OM SERVICES AP  6,356.28

7/17/2017 85636 CUSTOM MICRO INTERACTIVE, INC. AP  4,850.00

7/17/2017 85637 DCBS FISCAL SERVICES AP  5,765.22

7/17/2017 85638 EUGENE & SPRINGFIELD LOCK & SAFE AP  1,537.00

7/17/2017 85639 FASTENAL COMPANY AP  212.34

7/17/2017 85640 FEI  PORTLAND WATERWORKS #3011 AP  329.69

7/17/2017 85641 GATEWAY IMPRINTS, INC. AP  220.00

7/17/2017 85642 LISA GOURLEY AP  74.33

7/17/2017 85643 ALICE GROVOM AP  4,199.14

7/17/2017 85644 HOY'S TRUE VALUE AP  840.10

7/17/2017 85645 INDUSTRIAL WELDING SUPPLY, INC. AP  22.75

7/17/2017 85646 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES AP  290.70

7/17/2017 85647 ASHLEY JOHNSON-FOSS AP  54.99

7/17/2017 85648 KENDALL FORD AP  270.25

7/17/2017 85649 KNIFE RIVER AP  357.09

7/17/2017 85650 LES SCHWAB WAREHOUSE CENTER AP  497.42

7/17/2017 85651 LIBERTY ROCK PRODUCTS, INC. AP  46.06

7/17/2017 85652 LINN BENTON TRACTOR CO. AP  506.88

7/17/2017 85653 LINN COUNTY TREASURER AP  96.00

7/17/2017 85654 M.L. HOUCK CONSTRUCTION CO. AP  133,205.86

7/17/2017 85655 MARK THOMAS MOTORS, INC. AP  1,722.85

7/17/2017 85656 MID-VALLEY NEWSPAPERS AP  1,279.92

7/17/2017 85657 MOONLIGHT BPO, INC. AP  1,972.23

7/17/2017 85658 THE MORGAN CPS GROUP, INC. AP  3,740.00

7/17/2017 85659 NATIONAL PHOTOCOPY CORPORATION AP  534.34

7/17/2017 85660 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST AP  1,000.00

7/17/2017 85661 NET ASSETS AP  446.00

7/17/2017 85662 NEW ERA AP  1,097.00

7/17/2017 85663 NORM'S ELECTRIC, INC. AP  3,902.60

7/17/2017 85664 NORTHWEST CODE PROFESSIONALS AP  200.00

7/17/2017 85665 NORTHWEST NATURAL AP  581.70

7/17/2017 85666 OFFICE DEPOT AP  224.59

7/17/2017 85667 ONE CALL CONCEPTS AP  74.55

7/17/2017 85668 OREGON DEPT. OF REVENUE AP  428.98

7/17/2017 85669 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AP  16.12

BR-Checks by Date (8/2/2017 -  8:14 AM) Page 1

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.53



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

7/17/2017 85670 PACIFIC POWER AP  21,440.39

7/17/2017 85671 PASTEGA COFFEE SERVICE AP  100.44

7/17/2017 85672 PETROCARD AP  1,733.73

7/17/2017 85673 PETTY CASH - FINANCE OFFICE AP  88.01

7/17/2017 85674 PETTY CASH - LIBRARY AP  92.00

7/17/2017 85675 RAY'S QUALITY SERVICES AP  275.00

7/17/2017 85676 RELIABLE WELDING, INC. AP  20.00

7/17/2017 85677 RENEWABLE RESOURCE GROUP, INC. AP  160.00

7/17/2017 85678 SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO. AP  642.99

7/17/2017 85679 SOUTH FORK TRADING CO., INC. AP  137.39

7/17/2017 85680 STAPLES ADVANTAGE AP  853.46

7/17/2017 85681 SUNSHINE INDUSTRIES UNLIMITED, INC. AP  1,300.00

7/17/2017 85682 THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP. AP  495.03

7/17/2017 85683 TWGW, INC. NAPA AUTO PARTS AP  197.24

7/17/2017 85684 UDELL ENGINEERING & LAND SURVEYING AP  141.00

7/17/2017 85685 VALLEY FIRE CONTROL, INC. AP  351.00

7/17/2017 85686 D. MACK WALLS AP  730.00

7/17/2017 85687 WEATHERFORD THOMPSON COWGILL BLACK & SCHULTZ, PCAP  1,745.00

7/17/2017 85688 DEBBIE YEACK AP  782.10

7/17/2017 85689 ALBERTSONS / SAFEWAY AP  35.00

7/17/2017 85690 AMBER ATTEBERY AP  65.77

7/17/2017 85691 AUDIO EDITIONS AP  8.00

7/17/2017 85692 ROBERT BURFORD AP  600.00

7/17/2017 85693 CASCADE COMPUTER MAINTENANCE, INC. AP  3,154.00

7/17/2017 85694 CASELLE, INC. AP  196.67

7/17/2017 85695 CH2M OM SERVICES AP  83,362.42

7/17/2017 85696 CIS TRUST AP  160,658.71

7/17/2017 85697 CLUTCH INDUSTRIES, INC. AP  5,000.00

7/17/2017 85698 COMCAST AP  419.89

7/17/2017 85699 COMCAST BUSINESS AP  1,034.62

7/17/2017 85700 STATE OF OREGON CORPORATION DIVISION AP  50.00

7/17/2017 85701 CREATURE TEACHERS AP  225.00

7/17/2017 85702 EBSCO INFORMATION SERVICES CORP. AP  33.95

7/17/2017 85703 RANDEE FIELDS AP  51.00

7/17/2017 85704 LARRY FREEMAN AP  52.08

7/17/2017 85705 GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, INC. AP  8,000.00

7/17/2017 85706 ICMA MEMBERSHIP RENEWALS AP  788.35

7/17/2017 85707 LEAGUE OF OREGON CITIES AP  6,554.47

7/17/2017 85708 LGPI AP  1,375.00

7/17/2017 85709 LINN COUNTY RECORDER AP  110.00

7/17/2017 85710 METEREADERS, LLC AP  1,860.60

7/17/2017 85711 MUSEUM OF NATURAL AND CULTURAL HISTORY AP  139.00

7/17/2017 85712 OFFICE DEPOT AP  588.31

7/17/2017 85713 OMFOA AP  110.00

7/17/2017 85714 OREGON DEPT. OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY AP  360.00

7/17/2017 85715 OVERDRIVE AP  4,100.72

7/17/2017 85716 PENNY'S PUPPET PRODUCTIONS AP  300.00

7/17/2017 85717 TAMMI ROBERTSON AP  49.80

7/17/2017 85718 SCHOLASTIC, INC. AP  5.12

7/17/2017 85719 CHAD SCHUSTER AP  50.00

7/17/2017 85720 SELECTEMP CORPORATION AP  55.06

7/17/2017 85721 SIERRA SPRINGS AP  47.15

7/17/2017 85722 ROBERT STRATMAN AP  1,158.46

7/17/2017 85723 TERRY TILLINGHAST AP  31.55

7/17/2017 85724 WELLS FARGO VENDOR FIN SERV AP  296.00

7/25/2017 85725 ALSCO AP  291.00

BR-Checks by Date (8/2/2017 -  8:14 AM) Page 2

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.54



Check No Check Date Name ModuleComment AmountClear Date

7/25/2017 85726 CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT AP  175.56

7/25/2017 85727 CH2M OM SERVICES AP  83,362.42

7/25/2017 85728 COMCAST BUSINESS AP  1,457.28

7/25/2017 85729 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL AP  155.73

7/25/2017 85730 MOONLIGHT BPO, INC. AP  741.52

7/25/2017 85731 NEU FLO PLUMBING AP  470.00

7/25/2017 85732 SYNCB/AMAZON AP  1,155.25

7/28/2017 85733 PANSY  AGE AP  29.95

7/28/2017 85734 ALBERTSONS / SAFEWAY AP  44.93

7/28/2017 85735 CH2M OM SERVICES AP  4,689.12

7/28/2017 85736 COMCAST AP  358.81

7/28/2017 85737 DRIVER AND MOTOR VEHICLE SERVICES AP  30.00

7/28/2017 85738 LINN COUNTY RECORDER AP  55.00

7/28/2017 85739 CAROL MOFFET AP  72.62

7/28/2017 85740 NORTHWEST NATURAL AP  524.37

7/28/2017 85741 OREGON CASCADES WEST COG AP  9,972.86

7/28/2017 85742 OREGON MAYORS ASSOC. AP  325.00

7/28/2017 85743 ANDERSON AUTO BODY AP  179.20

7/28/2017 85744 BEAUTY BASE AP  25.00

7/28/2017 85745 DAN DEE SALES AP  100.00

7/28/2017 85746 DEMCO AP  26.50

7/28/2017 85747 DRIVER AND MOTOR VEHICLE SERVICES AP  11.50

7/28/2017 85748 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES AP  198.59

7/28/2017 85749 LGPI AP  532.00

7/28/2017 85750 SAMARITAN OCCUPATIONAL MED AP  56.00

7/28/2017 85751 THRIFTWAY AP  50.00

7/31/2017 85752 OREGON AFSCME COUNCIL 75 AP  1,123.50

7/31/2017 85753 STEELHEAD STRENGTH & FITNESS, LLC AP  615.60

7/31/2017 85754 SWEET HOME COMMUNITY FOUNDATION AP  125.00

7/31/2017 85755 UNITED WAY AP  110.00

7/31/2017 85756 STANDARD INS. CO. AP  3,659.35

Total Check Count:  133

Total Check Amount:  653,588.06

BR-Checks by Date (8/2/2017 -  8:14 AM) Page 3

City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.55



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.56



City Council Packet 08-08-17 pg.57


	Council Minutes 07-25-17
	08 08 17 RCA Vehicle Lease
	Municipal Lease and Option Agreement
	Vehicle Lease Forms
	Ordinance No 8 for 2017 Final
	Park Board Minute 2017.07.18
	City Council 07-25-17 Public Safety Committee
	2017.07.19  Tree Commission Minutes - draft
	July  2017 Finance Staff Report
	Checks by Date
	Comcast Notice 08-08-17



